# BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL

SECTION II: ADMINISTRATION, GOVERNANCE, AND PUBLIC OPERATION

## **BYLAWS OF THE LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES**

## **ARTICLE I**

## **BOARD OF TRUSTEES**

<u>Section 1</u> - The Library Board of Bloomfield Township Public Library shall consist of six trustees elected as provided by the laws of the State of Michigan.

<u>Section 2</u> - The responsibilities of the Library Board of Trustees as defined in Michigan Compiled Laws Public Act 397.205 include "make and adopt such bylaws, rules, and regulations for their own guidance and for the government of the library and reading room, as may be expedient; ...the exclusive control of the expenditure of all moneys collected to the credit of the library fund, and of the construction of any library building, and of the supervision, care, and custody of the grounds, rooms, or buildings constructed, leased, or set apart for that purpose; ...to purchase or lease grounds, to occupy, lease, or erect an appropriate building or buildings for the use of said library...to appoint a suitable librarian and necessary assistants, and fix their compensation; and ...to remove such appointees."

<u>Section 3</u> - In the event of a vacancy, the Board shall appoint a qualified person to hold the vacant office until the next general November election. The appointed trustee shall be selected by a process as outlined in the Library Board of Trustees-approved "Bloomfield Township Public Library Board of Trustees Vacancy Procedure."

## **ARTICLE II**

## **OFFICERS**

<u>Section 1</u> - The Officers of the Board of Trustees shall be a President, a Vice President, and a Secretary.

<u>Section 2</u> - The President, Vice President, and Secretary of the Board shall be elected annually at the annual meeting of the Library Board of Trustees. Each officer shall hold office until a successor shall have been duly elected or until death, resignation, conviction of a felony, removal from office by the Governor under the State Constitution or ceases to be a qualified elector of Bloomfield Township. Vacancies in an office shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term, at the next regular meeting of the Library Board of Trustees after such vacancy occurs.

<u>Section 3</u> - The President of the Board shall preside at all meetings, appoint all committees, authorize calls for any special meetings, and generally perform the duties of a presiding officer. The President shall have the authority to sign on behalf

# BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL

## SECTION II: ADMINISTRATION, GOVERNANCE, AND PUBLIC OPERATION

of the Board of Trustees all instruments, contracts, or documents necessary or proper to be executed as approved by a majority of the Library Board of Trustees. The President may delegate such authority to the Library Director as approved by the Library Board of Trustees.

<u>Section 4</u> – The Vice President of the Board, in the absence of the President, shall preside at all meetings, appoint all committees, authorize calls for any special meetings, and generally perform the duties of a presiding officer. The Vice President shall have the authority to sign on behalf of the Library Board of Trustees all instruments, contracts, or documents necessary or proper to be executed as approved by a majority of the Library Board of Trustees.

<u>Section 5</u> - The Secretary of the Board shall approve an accurate and permanent account of the proceedings of the Board meetings, and generally perform the duties associated with that office. In the President's and Vice President's absences, the Secretary shall preside at Board meetings, and assume the authority to act on behalf of the President and Vice President.

## **ARTICLE III**

### **MEETINGS**

<u>Section 1</u> - The regular monthly meetings of the Library Board shall be held at the Library on the third Tuesday of the month at 7 p.m., or the fourth Tuesday of April at 7 p.m., or at a time stated from the proceedings of the previous meeting unless otherwise ordered by the Library Board of Trustees.

<u>Section 2</u> - The first regular meeting of the Library Board in November shall be known as the annual meeting and shall be for the purpose of electing officers and the appointment to committees, in addition to any other business that may arise. Each Trustee is expected to serve as an officer of the Library Board at least once during their four year term.

<u>Section 3</u> - Special meetings may be called by the President or upon written request of three members of the Board, for the transaction of business stated in the call for the meeting.

<u>Section 4</u> - Notices of all regular meetings and any special meetings shall be distributed from the Library to all members at least three (3) days before the meeting; provided, however, that notice of any meeting may be waived by any Trustee.

<u>Section 5</u> - Public notice of all meetings of the Library Board of Trustees shall be posted in advance of such meetings, pursuant to the Michigan "Open Meetings Act," Michigan Compiled Laws Public Act 267 of 1976, as amended.

## BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL

## SECTION II: ADMINISTRATION, GOVERNANCE, AND PUBLIC OPERATION

<u>Section 6</u> - A quorum for the transaction of business shall consist of not less than four (4) members of the Board. The affirmative vote of a majority of the members present of the Library Board of Trustees present is required for the approval of any action or decision of the Board, unless the vote of a larger number is required by law. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting of the Board, the members of the Board present may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.

<u>Section 7</u> – As permitted by law, a member of the Library Board of Trustees may participate in a meeting using communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other. Participation in a meeting pursuant to this section constitutes a presence in person at the meeting.

**Section 8** - Regular attendance at board meetings is essential. The Library Board President and the Library Director should be notified in advance if attendance is not possible. A trustee who misses meetings frequently may not completely understand the issues at hand and valuable meeting time can be lost bringing that trustee back up to speed. An uninformed trustee cannot make the best possible decision when it comes time to vote. A successful library board needs every trustee at every meeting. A trustee who has difficulty in regularly attending meetings may wish to seek other opportunities to help the library rather than serving on the library board.

## **ARTICLE IV**

## **COMMITTEES**

<u>Section 1</u> – The President of the Board shall appoint members to standing committees such as Finance, Personnel, and Policy, among others. These committees shall make periodic reports to the Board.

<u>Section 2</u> – The President of the Board shall appoint members to special, select, or ad hoc committees created for specific purposes, such as the study and investigation of special issues, nominating committee and other ad hoc committees as the President shall deem appropriate. These committees shall make periodic reports to the Board as requested.

Two Trustees shall constitute the nominating committee and shall be appointed in advance of the annual meeting in November by the President of the Board. The role of the nominating committee is to find the most appropriate candidate for each office and present a slate of candidates at the annual meeting. Officers are elected by majority voice vote and begin their term after the meeting at which they are elected. The President should not sit on the Nominating Committee. Committee members can also be a nominee.

# BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP PUBLIC LIBRARY POLICY MANUAL

SECTION II: ADMINISTRATION, GOVERNANCE, AND PUBLIC OPERATION

### **ARTICLE V**

### LIBRARY DIRECTOR

<u>Section 1</u> - Pursuant to Michigan Compiled Laws Public Act 397.205, the Board of Trustees "shall have power to appoint a suitable librarian" to serve as Library Director and "shall also have power to remove such appointees." The appointed Library Director shall be selected by a process as outlined in the Library Board of Trustees-approved "Bloomfield Township Public Library Director Vacancy Procedure."

<u>Section 2</u> - The Library Director shall be considered the executive officer of the Library and shall have sole charge of the administration of the Library under the direction and review of the Library Board of Trustees.

<u>Section 3</u> -The Library Director shall be responsible for the Library's services and resources offered to the community; for the operation of the Library under the financial conditions set forth in the annual budget; for the employment and direction of the staff; and for the care of the buildings and equipment. The Library Director shall attend all meetings of the Library Board of Trustees.

#### **ARTICLE VI**

### PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

The rules contained in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the Board in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these bylaws and any special rules of order the Board may adopt.

## **ARTICLE VII**

## **AMENDMENTS**

The bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting of the Board by the affirmative vote of four (4) members of the Board of Trustees, provided that the proposed amendment was stated in the call for the meeting.

By-Laws adopted: 9/6/63 Amended: 2/10/87 Amended: 1/18/98 Amended: 1/19/99 Amended: 1/20/04 Amended: 1/16/07 Amended: 9/20/11 Amended: 9/16/14 Amended: 11/21/17 Amended: 10/16/18 Amended: 9/22/2022 Amended: 10/17/2023